
 
VILLAGE  of  LAWTON 

VILLAGE COUNCIL MEETING 
125 S. MAIN STREET, LAWTON, MI 49065 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 26TH, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER  

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of the October 26th, 2021, Agenda 

B. Approval of the October 12th, 2021, Minutes  

V. COMMUNICATIONS / CORRESPONDENCE / PRESENTATIONS 

A. Communication requesting consideration of downtown internet 

access…………………………………………………………......……..Discussion 

B. Communication from Antwerp Township regarding Senior Services 

Millage……………………………………………………………….….Discussion 

VI. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS – (Please keep comments to 3 minutes) 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS / APPOINTMENTS / PROCLAMATIONS 

A. Appointment of Ryan Tanis as a Village of Lawton Council person for the 

unexpired Village Council term ending in November, 

2022…………………………………….Recommend Approval by Roll Call Vote 

 



2  

 

 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS: 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Request from the Lawton Lions Club to hold the annual Lions Lighted Christmas 

Parade on Friday, Dec. 10th at 7:00 pm………Recommend Approval by Voice Vote 

B. Approval of Contract with Abonmarche Engineering, Architecture, and Land 

Surveying of Benton Harbor, Michigan for a Facilities analysis and feasibility study 

for the Lawton Village Hall Complex in the amount of 

$14,925.00…………………………….…Recommend Approval by Roll Call Vote 

X. BOARD, COMMITTEE, AND STAFF REPORTS  

A. Village Manager   

XI. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

XII. ADJOURNMENT - NEXT REGULAR MEETING DATE – November 9th, 2021 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Village of Lawton follows the Americans w/ Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities planning to attend 
this meeting and require accommodations, or those who have questions regarding the accessibility of this meeting or the 
facilities, are requested to contact the Village Clerk, at (269) 624-6407 or bellj@lawtonmi.gov to allow the Village to make 
reasonable accommodations. If you have questions or comments, and you are unable to make the meeting, forward to the 
Village Manager at imusl@lawtonmi.gov.  
  

Posted October 22nd, 2021, for the VILLAGE OF LAWTON in VAN BUREN COUNTY, MICHIGAN 
www.lawtonmi.gov 269.624.6407 

http://www.lawtonmi.gov/
http://www.lawtonmi.gov/


VILLAGE OF LAWTON 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Tuesday October 12, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. 

  Village Hall – 125 S. Main Street, Lawton MI 49065 
WWW.LAWTONMI.GOV    269.624.6407 

 
 

MINUTES 

I.  CALL TO ORDER President Appleby called the October 12, 2021, meeting of the Lawton Village Council 

to order at 7:00 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

III.  ROLL CALL: Present: President Appleby. Trustees: E. Dudek, N. Smith, G. Dudek, J. Peterson, and R. 

Turner.  Others present: Village Manager Imus, Chief Mack, and Supt. Hackenberg and one other guest. 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA:  The Consent Agenda included the approval of the October 12, 2021, Council 

Agenda, the September 14, 2021, Council Meeting minutes, disbursements in the amount of $51,028.49 

and the approval of payment for Michigan Municipal League Membership annual renewal in the amount 

of $1,463.00. Peterson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda with clerical corrections, 

supported by Turner.   A unanimous roll call vote approved the motion.   

V. COMMUNICATIONS, CORRESPONDENCE AND PRESENTATIONS:  None 

VI. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS:  Ryan Tanis, 717 E. Fourth Street, informed Council of his interest in the vacant 

trustee position. 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS / APPOINTMENTS:  

A. President Appleby made a motion to open the Public Hearing for the Second Reading of proposed 

Ordinance 201 of 2021 – the International Property Maintenance Code (2015 Edition) to be 

adopted by reference as the Property Maintenance Code of the Village of Lawton, with support 

from E. Dudek.  A unanimous voice vote carried the motion.  President Appleby offered public 

comment, barring none, Peterson motioned to close the Public Hearing with support from 

Turner.  A unanimous voice vote closed the public hearing. 

VIII. EXISTING BUSINESS: 

A. Turner, with support from Smith made a motion to adopt by reference Ordinance 201 of 2021 - 

the International Property Maintenance Code (2015 Edition) as the Property Maintenance Code 

for the Village of Lawton.   

IX. NEW BUSINESS: 

http://www.lawtonmi.gov/


Village of Lawton  2 

A. E. Dudek made a motion to adopt (with clerical corrections) Resolution 20-2021, a Resolution 

approving a land division at 301 72nd Street, Lawton, MI, Parcel #80-45-700-130-00.  Smith 

supported the motion.   A unanimous roll call vote carried the motion. 

B. Peterson with support from G. Dudek motioned approval of Resolution 21-2021 Authorizing the 

Sale of 423 E. Second Street, and Execution of Sale Documents by the Council President and 

Village Manager.  Motion was carried by a unanimous roll call vote.  

C. E. Dudek motioned to approve Resolution #22-2021, a Resolution approving a Charitable Gaming 

License for the Lawton Athletic Boosters.  Motion was seconded by Turner and a unanimous roll 

call vote approved this Resolution. 

X. BOARD, COMMITTEE, AND STAFF REPORTS  

A. Village Manager – Manager Imus reports we have received an IFT request from Welches. They 

are requesting a 12-year 50% tax abatement for real and personal property. Imus also reports 

she and Supt. Hackenberg met with BakerTilly and Wightman to review the water/sewer rate 

analysis.  BakerTilly and Wightman are currently reviewing the CIP to see if any projects could be 

“bundled” together to consider bonding.  If bonded, it would spread the payments out over a 

longer period so that we could potentially increase rates at a slower pace.  If paying cash, rates 

would have to increase faster to have the cash in hand.  Imus notes we should have some 

numbers to present to the Committee within the next two weeks. We have received 6 Master 

Plan Proposals and on Monday Planning Commission and Council selected three consultants to 

interview on Thursday, October 14, 2021 which included CIB Planning, Progressive AE, and 

Abonmarche.  The Village also received proposals for Village Hall renovations and are in the 

process of contracting with Abonmarche.   

B. Department of Public Works – Superintendent Hackenberg reports he has received the results 

for the State test for copper and lead.  The results were good!  He is working on a CIP for 

equipment replacement.  He reports an issue on 3rd Street with sewer lines that will need to be 

replaced before winter.  Hackenberg also informed Council that the 1-ton Dump Truck that is 

used extensively is out of service due to the box rusting out. Hackenberg has included a letter 

with a replacement truck he has found and is requesting Council to consider authorizing a 

purchase pending an inspection, test drive and history of ownership.  Peterson made a motion 

to authorize the Superintendent of DPW to spend up to but not to exceed $25,000.00 for a 

replacement truck, seconded by Smith.  A unanimous roll call vote carried the motion. 

C. Police Department – Chief Mack read his monthly report and noted there has been a warrant 

issued for the Tree Service that illegally took down trees that were not under contract. 



Village of Lawton  3 

D. Planning Commission – Peterson reports Planning Commission met on 10/5/21. They have 

adopted the Planning Commission by-laws, and they have a site plan review for the property 

south of General Dollar to be utilized for storage units in November. 

E. Downtown Development Authority (DDA) - G. Dudek reports they met and had discussion on a 

flagpole for Cannon Park, continued talks on the Boy Scout Hall for storage, they also talked about 

moving the Christmas Card contest to the Reid Property.  The contest will be open to the entire 

Lawton community, not just Village residents.  Discussion on a Christmas Tree for the community 

was also mentioned. 

F. Community & Economic Development Committee (CEDC) – Smith reports they met with 

LandUSA and CIB Planning regarding a housing analysis. Initially hoping for a Target Market 

Analysis in conjunction with the Master Plan, due to the cost it would be prudent to recruit the 

County and other communities, townships etc. to be involved to help incur the cost and benefit 

the larger area.   

G. Finance and Administration Committee –Appleby reports the committee met to review the 

Village Manager’s Review.  

H. Public Safety Committee: Turner reports they met before tonight’s meeting.  They discussed the 

Police Department’s Accreditation process and are assembling the necessary information. Turner 

would like to have Chief write something for the newsletter monthly, maybe called “Chief’s 

Corner”.  They discussed coming up with a fireworks calendar.  The currently owned body 

cameras and car cameras most likely will not be repairable.  Chief will check with the County for 

information on new equipment.  There was also discussion on creating a Police Motor Pool Fund. 

I. Public Services Committee – G. Dudek reports they met.  There is a delay on the Chip & Seal 

project, Superintendent Hackenberg is supposed to hear more on the schedule later this week.   

J. Water and Sewer Committee – E. Dudek reports the Village Managers comments regarding 

water and sewer has covered his update. 

XI. COUNCIL COMMENTS:  None     

XII. ADJOURNMENT: 

 Turner, supported by E. Dudek, made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:34 p.m.  A voice vote  

 was taken with unanimous approval of those present. The next regular scheduled meeting is 

 October 26, 2021. 

   

     Respectfully Submitted by Joni Bell, Village Clerk 















1.eauest for Christmas In The Village festivities

Lions Lighted Christmas Parade: Friday, December 10th at 7:00pm. Lin up 6:30 pm. Behind Big T. 

Following Parade_

Santa Visits, Community Room

Cookies and Hot Chocolate, Fire Hall

Busters Hay Rides and Burning Barrels

Monday, December 14th Christmas Caroling in the Village with the Lions Club. Public is invited

Thank vou. 
  Vicki Mroczek 
Lawton Lions Club 



Professional Services Agreement 

Revised 1-3-2020 Page 1 of 4 

Abonmarche Project Number: 

AGREEMENT between (Client name), (Date) 

(Client address)  (Phone)  

(Cell)  (Fax)  (Email)  hereinafter referred 

to as the Client, and Abonmarche Consultants, Inc., referred to as Abonmarche, located at:________________________________________________________________ 

The Client contracts with Abonmarche to perform professional services regarding the Client’s project generally referred to as: 

(Project Name)      (Location) 

The professional services to be provided by Abonmarche, collectively referred to as the Work Plan, are as follows: 

(Scope of work) 

(Project schedule) 

(Special Provisions) 

Abonmarche’s proposal/work plan, dated is incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and is limited to the services 
described therein.  Abonmarche’s Terms and Conditions for Professional Services are incorporated by client’s Authorization signature below. 

The Client agrees to promptly pay for services provided by Abonmarche for the Scope of Work according to the following: 

(Fee/Type) 

Prior to commencement of services, the Client will specify any and all documentation that the Client requires for submission with the invoice for services 
provided by Abonmarche. Absent any special request from the Client, Abonmarche will send its standard form of invoice.  

If, after receipt of an invoice from Abonmarche, the Client has any questions, objections, or if there are any discrepancies in the invoice, the Client shall 
identify the issue in writing within ten (10) days of its receipt.  If no written objection is made within the ten (10) day period, any such objection shall be deemed 
waived.   

Abonmarche invoices are due upon receipt and shall be considered past due if not paid within 30 calendar days of the invoice date.  The parties agree that 
interest of 1.5% per month will be added to any unpaid balance after 30 days. Payment thereafter shall first be applied to accrued interest and then to the 
unpaid principal. 

The Client has designated  as its Representative.  The Representative shall have the authority to  
execute any documents pertaining to this Agreement or amendments thereto, and for the approval of all change orders, addenda, and additional services to 
be performed by Abonmarche.  The representative shall be the contact person for submission of all documents, invoices or communications.  

Authorization to Proceed and Guarantee of Payment: By signing this Agreement, the Client authorizes Abonmarche to provide services described above, and 
that the Client is the responsible party for making payment to Abonmarche.  By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received and agree to the Terms 
and Conditions on Pages 2-4 of this Agreement, and I understand that the Terms and Conditions take precedence over all prior oral and written 
understandings. These Terms and Conditions can only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a written instrument signed by both parties. Any 
notice or other communications shall be in writing and shall be considered to have been duly given when personally delivered or upon the third day after 
being deposited into first class certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  

Authorized Client Representative If Individual Authorized Abonmarche Representative 

Client: Signature:  Signature: 

Signature: Printed Name: Printed Name: 

Printed Name: Date of Birth: Title: 

Date Signed: Driver’s License #: 
Originating 
Office: 

Abonmarche Consultants, Inc. 

Federal Tax ID: Employed by: 
___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ Address: 

City/State Date Signed: 

Date Signed: 



 

 

 
 Project: Lawton Village Hall – Renovations and Master Plan Feasibility Study 

 Date / Time:  October 15th, 2021 – 1:30 PM 

 Location: Lawton Village Hall  

  Attendees: Lisa Imus  Village of Lawton Manager imusl@lawtonmi.gov 

  Ren Turner  Village of Lawton Council Mem. renturner72@gmail.com 

  Evan Leduc  Abonmarche   eleduc@abonmarche.com 

  Derk Walkotten Abonmarche   dwalkotten@abonmarche.com 

 

   

 
Item  Action Responsibility Due / Complete 

 Purpose: Review Scope and Next Steps    

 Village items shared: 

-Manager wants to streamline /renegotiate contracts 

with building users 

-Village would like to develop a CIP for the building 

-Water quality is not good. 

-There is leaking where the fire station roof meets the 

city offices roof. A former penetration repair is the 

assumed suspect location 

-Lisa urgently needs a separate office space 

-Council wants upgrades to its council room that are 

flexible for different functions to happen in the 

chamber 

-More flexible furniture needed to accommodate 

multitude of different events that happen in the 

chamber room 

-City office need their own kitchenette with sink and 

refrigerator 

There are currently 3 areas for village. 

1. Office 

2. Council Chamber 

3. Community Room 

Police currently use existing vault for important 

evidence and equipment. Access would need to be 

maintained to this space for them. 

-Police are very inaccessible to public and have 

blackened out their glazing between the office and 

hallway. 

-Library would like access to their own toilet. 

-HVAC – Would like to be able to meter energy usage 

of each department. 

N/A N/A  

1) 1. Approach: 

a. Review of Existing Materials 

b. Onsite Verification (extg. Conditions) 

c. Establish project team with 3-5 

members from village and 

departments 

d. Meet with Building Users (Departments, 

Library/Museum) 

 

Confirm 

minutes with 

Village and 

prepare 

scope 

document 

Abonrmarche TBD after approval 

of minutes 

2) 1. Deliverables 

a. Confirmation of Scope 

i. Needs Assessment 

(repairs/upgrades) 

Future  To be spelled out 

in scope 

document 

Minutes 



Regional Roots - Initial Site Visit 

Abonmarche 

10/15/2021 

Page 2 of 2 

O:\Proposals\_Michigan\Governmental\Village of Lawton\2021\Lawton Village Hall\2021.10.19-Minutes - Initial Onsite Meeting.docx 

ii. Space Requirements 

(long/short term)  

b. Development of Master Plan for 

Existing Space Re-Utilization  

c. Outline of Specific Phases (timing 

and potential cost) 

d. Detailed Plan for Village Manager 

Office 

e. Assist Village in identification of 

potential grant sources  

 

3) 1. Immediate Action 

a. Provide Private Office Space for 

Village Manager (interim use of 

office  furniture) 

 

Abonmarche 

to research 

potential 

options upon 

approval of 

minutes 

Abonmarche  

4)     

5)     

6)     

7)     

8)     

9)     

10)     

     

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, October 21, 2021 

 

Derk Walkotten – Abonmarche Architectural Project Manager 























Professional Services Agreement 

Revised 1-3-2020 Page 1 of 4 

Abonmarche Project Number: 

AGREEMENT between (Client name), (Date) 

(Client address)  (Phone)  

(Cell)  (Fax)  (Email)  hereinafter referred 

to as the Client, and Abonmarche Consultants, Inc., referred to as Abonmarche, located at:________________________________________________________________ 

The Client contracts with Abonmarche to perform professional services regarding the Client’s project generally referred to as: 

(Project Name)      (Location) 

The professional services to be provided by Abonmarche, collectively referred to as the Work Plan, are as follows: 

(Scope of work) 

(Project schedule) 

(Special Provisions) 

Abonmarche’s proposal/work plan, dated is incorporated into this Agreement by reference, and is limited to the services 
described therein.  Abonmarche’s Terms and Conditions for Professional Services are incorporated by client’s Authorization signature below. 

The Client agrees to promptly pay for services provided by Abonmarche for the Scope of Work according to the following: 

(Fee/Type) 

Prior to commencement of services, the Client will specify any and all documentation that the Client requires for submission with the invoice for services 
provided by Abonmarche. Absent any special request from the Client, Abonmarche will send its standard form of invoice.  

If, after receipt of an invoice from Abonmarche, the Client has any questions, objections, or if there are any discrepancies in the invoice, the Client shall 
identify the issue in writing within ten (10) days of its receipt.  If no written objection is made within the ten (10) day period, any such objection shall be deemed 
waived.   

Abonmarche invoices are due upon receipt and shall be considered past due if not paid within 30 calendar days of the invoice date.  The parties agree that 
interest of 1.5% per month will be added to any unpaid balance after 30 days. Payment thereafter shall first be applied to accrued interest and then to the 
unpaid principal. 

The Client has designated  as its Representative.  The Representative shall have the authority to  
execute any documents pertaining to this Agreement or amendments thereto, and for the approval of all change orders, addenda, and additional services to 
be performed by Abonmarche.  The representative shall be the contact person for submission of all documents, invoices or communications.  

Authorization to Proceed and Guarantee of Payment: By signing this Agreement, the Client authorizes Abonmarche to provide services described above, and 
that the Client is the responsible party for making payment to Abonmarche.  By signing below, I acknowledge that I have received and agree to the Terms 
and Conditions on Pages 2-4 of this Agreement, and I understand that the Terms and Conditions take precedence over all prior oral and written 
understandings. These Terms and Conditions can only be amended, supplemented, modified, or canceled by a written instrument signed by both parties. Any 
notice or other communications shall be in writing and shall be considered to have been duly given when personally delivered or upon the third day after 
being deposited into first class certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  

Authorized Client Representative If Individual Authorized Abonmarche Representative 

Client: Signature:  Signature: 

Signature: Printed Name: Printed Name: 

Printed Name: Date of Birth: Title: 

Date Signed: Driver’s License #: 
Originating 
Office: 

Abonmarche Consultants, Inc. 

Federal Tax ID: Employed by: 
___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ Address: 

City/State Date Signed: 

Date Signed: 



Revised 1-16-2020 Page 2 of 4 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT  
1. Agreement. These Terms and Conditions shall be

incorporated by reference and shall prevail as the basis of
the Client’s Agreement to Abonmarche.  Any Client
document or communication in addition to or in conflict with 
these Terms and Conditions shall be subordinate and subject 
to these provisions.

2. Execution. Abonmarche has the option to render this
Agreement null and void, if it is not executed within thirty (30) 
days of delivery.

3. Client Responsibilities. The Client will provide all criteria and
information concerning the requirements of the Project.
Abonmarche shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of services and information furnished by the
Client, including services and information provided by design 
professionals or consultants directly to the Client. These
services and information include, but are not limited to,
surveys, tests, reports, diagrams, drawings, and legal
information.  The Client will assume responsibility for
interpretation of contract documents and for construction
observation and will waive all claims against Abonmarche
that may be in any way connected, unless Abonmarche’s
services under this Agreement include full-time construction
observation or review of contractor’s performance. The
Client shall designate in writing a person with authority to act 
on Client’s behalf on all matters related to Abonmarche’s
services.

4. Performance. The standard of care for services performed by 
or provided by Abonmarche will be the care and skill
ordinarily used by Abonmarche’s profession practicing under 
similar circumstances at the same time and in the same
locality. Abonmarche makes no warranty, expressed or
implied, with respect to any services provided by
Abonmarche.  Abonmarche may be liable for claims,
damages, cost, loss or expense (including reasonable
attorney’s fees) to the extent caused by the negligent acts,
errors, or omissions of Abonmarche.

5. Billing and Payment. The client shall make an initial payment
of $____________(retainer) upon execution of this Agreement.
The retainer shall be held by Abonmarche and applied
against the final invoice. If the Client fails to make payments
when due and Abonmarche incurs any costs in order to
collect overdue sums from the Client, the Client agrees that
all such collection costs incurred shall immediately become
due and payable to Abonmarche. Collection costs shall
include, without limitation, legal fees, collection agency fees
and expenses, court costs, collection bonds and reasonable
Abonmarche staff costs at standard billing rates for
Abonmarche’s time spent in efforts to collect. This obligation
of the Client to pay Abonmarche’s collection costs shall
survive the term of this Agreement or any earlier termination
by either party.

6. Hourly Billing Rates. If payment is on an hourly rate, Client will 
pay Abonmarche at the current hourly billing rates.  The
hourly rates are adjusted annually or as deemed
appropriate.

7. Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses, the actual
costs incurred directly or indirectly for the Client’s Project, will
be charged at Abonmarche’s current rates.  Examples of
reimbursable expenses include, but are not limited to:
mileage, tests and analyses, special equipment services,
postage and delivery charges, telephone and telefax
charges, copying, printing, and binding charges,
commercial transportation, meals, lodging, special fees,
licenses, and permits.  Subconsultant and outside technical
or professional services will be charged on the basis of the
actual costs times a factor of 1.15.

8. Additional Services. Additional services that may be
provided pursuant to the Agreement or any subsequent
modification of the Agreement will be authorized by written
amendment signed on behalf of the Client and
Abonmarche. Additional services performed by

Abonmarche are subject to all Terms and Conditions and the 
Client will be responsible for payment.  Should the Client, 
regulatory agency, or any public body or inspector direct 
modification or addition to services covered by this 
Agreement, including costs relating to the relationship 
between the Client and a third party i.e. punch lists, change 
orders, and disputes, the cost will be added to the agreed 
price.  Requests for extra services should be made in writing 
via a change order, but nonetheless, Abonmarche is entitled 
to be paid for extra services provided whether or not it is in 
writing. 

9. Underground Structures or Buried Utilities.  The Client is
responsible for identification and location of all public and
private buried structures on the Client’s property and the
Project site, such as, but not limited to, storage tanks and
lines, or gas, water, sewer, electrical, phone, cable, or any 
other public or private utilities.  It is agreed that Abonmarche
is not responsible for accidental damage to utilities or
underground structures, whether known, unknown or
improperly located.  The client shall be responsible for design
fees if changes are necessary.  Utility locating or marking
services provided by Abonmarche are not substitutes for
complying with the utility owner notification requirements or
the locating services (811 systems) required prior to an
excavation.  Utilities shown as located by ground penetrating 
radar are approximate only.  No excavation took place to
verify the positions shown or to verify the type of utility (except 
as noted).  Careful excavation is required for verification of
the buried utility.  The owner or customer assumes the risk of
error and the actual location of the underground utility.
Abonmarche is not providing any certification or guarantee
regarding the exact location of any underground utility.

10. Hazardous or Contaminated Materials/Conditions.
Abonmarche does not provide environmental services. As
such, Client will advise Abonmarche, in writing and prior to
the commencement of services, of all known or suspected
hazardous or contaminated materials/conditions present at
the site(s). Abonmarche and the Client agree that the
discovery of unknown or unconfirmed hazardous or
contaminated materials/conditions constitutes a changed
condition that may require Abonmarche to renegotiate the
scope of work or terminate its services. Abonmarche and
Client also agree that the discovery of said
materials/conditions may make it necessary for Abonmarche 
to take immediate measures to protect health, safety, and
welfare of those performing services. Client agrees to
compensate Abonmarche for any costs incident to the
discovery of said materials/conditions. Client acknowledges
that Abonmarche cannot guarantee that contaminants do
not exist at a project site. Similarly, a site which is in fact
unaffected by contaminants at the time of Abonmarche’s
surface or subsurface exploration may later, due to natural
phenomenon or human intervention, become
contaminated. Client waives any claim against
Abonmarche, and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold
Abonmarche harmless from any claims or liability for injury or
loss in the event that Abonmarche does not detect the
presence of contaminants through techniques commonly
applied in the provision of their services.

11. Underground Conditions.  Abonmarche shall have no
responsibility for the identification of existing or
unforeseen/differing underground conditions. The
Contractor shall have sole responsibility for determining the
nature of underground conditions and the means and
methods of dealing with those conditions. Abonmarche is
entitled to rely upon the information provided by
geotechnical consultants and shall have no responsibility for
the accuracy or correctness of the data contained in the
geotechnical reports.

12. Site Access and Security. With the exception of access
rights that land surveyors are afforded by law, the Client will
provide Abonmarche access to the Project site and the
Client will be responsible for obtaining any necessary



 

Revised 1-16-2020 Page 3 of 4 

permission from any affected third-party property owners for 

use of their lands. The Client is solely responsible for site 

security.  

13. Consultants. Abonmarche may engage Consultants at the 

request of the Client to perform services which are typically 

the Client’s responsibility, such as surveys, geotechnical and 

environmental assessments. The Client agrees that 

Abonmarche will not be responsible for, or in any manner 

guarantee, the performance of services by the Consultants. 

The Client further agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by 

law, to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Abonmarche, 

its officers, directors, employees and subconsultants 

(collectively, Abonmarche) against any damages, liabilities 

or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense 

costs, arising or allegedly arising from subsurface 

penetrations in locations authorized by the Client or from the 

inaccuracy or incompleteness of information provided to 

Abonmarche by the Client, except for damages caused by 

the sole negligence or willful misconduct of Abonmarche.  

14. Opinions of Cost. Any opinions of probable construction 

cost and/or total project cost provided by Abonmarche will 

be on the basis of experience and judgment, but these are 

only estimates. Abonmarche has no control over market or 

contracting conditions and does not warrant that bids or 

ultimate construction or total project costs will not vary from 

such estimates. 

15. Ownership of Instruments of Service. Abonmarche will 

remain the owner of all original drawings, reports, and other 

materials provided to the Client, whether in hard copy or 

electronic media form.  The Client is authorized to use the 

copies provided by Abonmarche only in connection with the 

Project.  Any other use or reuse by the Client for any purposes 

whatever will be at the Client’s risk and full legal responsibility, 

without liability to Abonmarche and the Client will defend, 

indemnify, and hold Abonmarche harmless from all claims, 

damages, losses, and expenses, including attorney fees 

arising out of or resulting there from.  

16. Electronic Media. Copies of data, reports, drawings, 

specifications, and other materials furnished by Abonmarche 

that may be relied upon by the Client are limited to the 

printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are delivered 

to the Client pursuant to the services under this Agreement.  

Computer files of text, data, graphics, or of other types of 

electronic media are the sole possession of Abonmarche, 

unless specifically stated otherwise in an amendment to this 

Agreement.  Any electronic media provided under this 

Agreement to the Client are only for the convenience of the 

Client.  Any conclusions or information obtained or derived 

from such electronic files will be at the user’s sole risk. 

17. Bonds and Permits. The Client will be responsible for the 

adoption of any site access or right of way bonds that may 

be initiated on their behalf.  At completion of Abonmarche’s 

services, the Client will take responsibility and pay any 

ongoing bond or permit costs for any bonded or permitted 

services. 

18. Insurance. The Client will cause Abonmarche and 

Abonmarche’s employees to be listed as additional insured 

on the general liability policies carried by the Client that are 

applicable to the Project.  Upon request, the Client and 

Abonmarche will each deliver to the other certificates of 

insurance evidencing their coverage. The Client will require 

the Contractor to purchase and maintain general liability, 

automobile liability, workers compensation and other 

insurance as specified in the Contract Documents and to 

cause Abonmarche and Abonmarche’s employees to be 

listed as additional insured with on a primary and non-

contributory basis under the general liability and automobile 

insurance policies as respect to such liability and other 

insurance purchased and maintained by the Contractor for 

the Project. A certificate of insurance evidencing the 

additional insured and primary coverage status of 

Abonmarche under the General and Automobile liability 

from the Contractor shall be provided to Abonmarche. 

19. Third Party Invoicing.  If the Client directs Abonmarche to 

invoice third party payers, Abonmarche will do so, but the 

Client agrees to be ultimately responsible for Abonmarche’s 

compensation until the Client provides Abonmarche with the 

third party’s written acceptance of all terms of this 

Agreement and until Abonmarche agrees to the substitution.  

20. Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing contained in this 

Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a 

cause of action in favor of a third party against either the 

Client or Abonmarche.  Abonmarche’s services under this 

Agreement are being performed solely for the Client’s 

benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim 

against Abonmarche because of this Agreement or 

performance or nonperformance of services hereunder.  The 

Client and Abonmarche agree to require a similar provision 

in all contracts with contractors, subcontractors, 

subconsultants, vendors and other entities involved in this 

Project to carry out the intent of this provision.   

21. Suspension of Services.  In the event of non-payment or 

other breach by Client, Abonmarche will have the absolute 

right and without any liability whatsoever to the Client for any 

costs or damages as a result of such suspension caused by 

any breach of this Agreement by the Client. Upon payment 

in full by the Client, Abonmarche shall resume services under 

this Agreement, and the schedule and compensation shall 

be equitably adjusted to compensate for the period of 

suspension plus any other reasonable time and expense 

necessary for Abonmarche to resume performance.  

22. Contractor’s Work.  Abonmarche shall have no authority to 

direct or control the Work of the Contractor or to stop the 

Work of the Contractor. Abonmarche shall not be liable to 

any party for the failure of the Contractor to perform the Work 

consistent with the Plans and Specifications and applicable 

Codes and Regulations. Neither the performance of the 

services by Abonmarche, nor the presence of Abonmarche 

at a project construction site, shall impose any duty on 

Abonmarche, nor relieve the construction contractor of its 

obligations, duties and responsibilities including, but not 

limited to, construction means, methods, sequence, 

techniques or procedures necessary for performing, 

superintending and coordinating the construction work  in 

accordance with the plans and specifications and any 

health or safety precautions required by any regulatory 

agencies or applicable law.  Abonmarche and its personnel 

have no authority to exercise any control over any 

construction contractor or its employees in connection with 

their work or any health or safety programs or procedures.  

The Client agrees that the construction contractor shall be 

solely responsible for jobsite and worker safety.  

23. ADA and Code Compliance. The Americans with Disabilities 

Act (ADA) provides that alterations to a facility must be 

made in such a manner that, to the maximum extent 

feasible, the altered portions of the facility are accessible to 

persons with disabilities. The Client acknowledges that the 

requirements of ADA will be subject to various and possibly 

contradictory interpretations. To the extent applicable, 

Abonmarche will use its reasonable professional efforts and 

judgement to interpret ADA requirements and other federal, 

state, and local laws, rules, codes, ordinances, and 

regulations as they may apply on the Project. Abonmarche 

does not warrant or guarantee that the Project will comply 

with all interpretations of the ADA requirements and/or the 

requirements of other federal, state and local codes, rules, 

laws, ordinances, and regulations as they may apply to the 

Project. Client shall pay Abonmarche its customary hourly 

fees plus reimbursable expenses for any design changes 

made necessary by newly enacted laws, codes and 

regulations, or changes to existing laws, codes, or regulations 

after the date that this Agreement is executed.  

24. Notice of Lien Rights. Abonmarche hereby notifies, and the 

Client acknowledges that Abonmarche has lien rights on the 

Client’s land and property when Abonmarche provides labor 

and materials for Projects on the Client’s land and the Client 



Revised 1-16-2020 Page 2 of 4 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT  
1. Agreement. These Terms and Conditions shall be

incorporated by reference and shall prevail as the basis of
the Client’s Agreement to Abonmarche.  Any Client
document or communication in addition to or in conflict with 
these Terms and Conditions shall be subordinate and subject 
to these provisions.

2. Execution. Abonmarche has the option to render this
Agreement null and void, if it is not executed within thirty (30) 
days of delivery.

3. Client Responsibilities. The Client will provide all criteria and
information concerning the requirements of the Project.
Abonmarche shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and
completeness of services and information furnished by the
Client, including services and information provided by design 
professionals or consultants directly to the Client. These
services and information include, but are not limited to,
surveys, tests, reports, diagrams, drawings, and legal
information.  The Client will assume responsibility for
interpretation of contract documents and for construction
observation and will waive all claims against Abonmarche
that may be in any way connected, unless Abonmarche’s
services under this Agreement include full-time construction
observation or review of contractor’s performance. The
Client shall designate in writing a person with authority to act 
on Client’s behalf on all matters related to Abonmarche’s
services.

4. Performance. The standard of care for services performed by 
or provided by Abonmarche will be the care and skill
ordinarily used by Abonmarche’s profession practicing under 
similar circumstances at the same time and in the same
locality. Abonmarche makes no warranty, expressed or
implied, with respect to any services provided by
Abonmarche.  Abonmarche may be liable for claims,
damages, cost, loss or expense (including reasonable
attorney’s fees) to the extent caused by the negligent acts,
errors, or omissions of Abonmarche.

5. Billing and Payment. The client shall make an initial payment
of $____________(retainer) upon execution of this Agreement.
The retainer shall be held by Abonmarche and applied
against the final invoice. If the Client fails to make payments
when due and Abonmarche incurs any costs in order to
collect overdue sums from the Client, the Client agrees that
all such collection costs incurred shall immediately become
due and payable to Abonmarche. Collection costs shall
include, without limitation, legal fees, collection agency fees
and expenses, court costs, collection bonds and reasonable
Abonmarche staff costs at standard billing rates for
Abonmarche’s time spent in efforts to collect. This obligation
of the Client to pay Abonmarche’s collection costs shall
survive the term of this Agreement or any earlier termination
by either party.

6. Hourly Billing Rates. If payment is on an hourly rate, Client will 
pay Abonmarche at the current hourly billing rates.  The
hourly rates are adjusted annually or as deemed
appropriate.

7. Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses, the actual
costs incurred directly or indirectly for the Client’s Project, will
be charged at Abonmarche’s current rates.  Examples of
reimbursable expenses include, but are not limited to:
mileage, tests and analyses, special equipment services,
postage and delivery charges, telephone and telefax
charges, copying, printing, and binding charges,
commercial transportation, meals, lodging, special fees,
licenses, and permits.  Subconsultant and outside technical
or professional services will be charged on the basis of the
actual costs times a factor of 1.15.

8. Additional Services. Additional services that may be
provided pursuant to the Agreement or any subsequent
modification of the Agreement will be authorized by written
amendment signed on behalf of the Client and
Abonmarche. Additional services performed by

Abonmarche are subject to all Terms and Conditions and the 
Client will be responsible for payment.  Should the Client, 
regulatory agency, or any public body or inspector direct 
modification or addition to services covered by this 
Agreement, including costs relating to the relationship 
between the Client and a third party i.e. punch lists, change 
orders, and disputes, the cost will be added to the agreed 
price.  Requests for extra services should be made in writing 
via a change order, but nonetheless, Abonmarche is entitled 
to be paid for extra services provided whether or not it is in 
writing. 

9. Underground Structures or Buried Utilities.  The Client is
responsible for identification and location of all public and
private buried structures on the Client’s property and the
Project site, such as, but not limited to, storage tanks and
lines, or gas, water, sewer, electrical, phone, cable, or any 
other public or private utilities.  It is agreed that Abonmarche
is not responsible for accidental damage to utilities or
underground structures, whether known, unknown or
improperly located.  The client shall be responsible for design
fees if changes are necessary.  Utility locating or marking
services provided by Abonmarche are not substitutes for
complying with the utility owner notification requirements or
the locating services (811 systems) required prior to an
excavation.  Utilities shown as located by ground penetrating 
radar are approximate only.  No excavation took place to
verify the positions shown or to verify the type of utility (except 
as noted).  Careful excavation is required for verification of
the buried utility.  The owner or customer assumes the risk of
error and the actual location of the underground utility.
Abonmarche is not providing any certification or guarantee
regarding the exact location of any underground utility.

10. Hazardous or Contaminated Materials/Conditions.
Abonmarche does not provide environmental services. As
such, Client will advise Abonmarche, in writing and prior to
the commencement of services, of all known or suspected
hazardous or contaminated materials/conditions present at
the site(s). Abonmarche and the Client agree that the
discovery of unknown or unconfirmed hazardous or
contaminated materials/conditions constitutes a changed
condition that may require Abonmarche to renegotiate the
scope of work or terminate its services. Abonmarche and
Client also agree that the discovery of said
materials/conditions may make it necessary for Abonmarche 
to take immediate measures to protect health, safety, and
welfare of those performing services. Client agrees to
compensate Abonmarche for any costs incident to the
discovery of said materials/conditions. Client acknowledges
that Abonmarche cannot guarantee that contaminants do
not exist at a project site. Similarly, a site which is in fact
unaffected by contaminants at the time of Abonmarche’s
surface or subsurface exploration may later, due to natural
phenomenon or human intervention, become
contaminated. Client waives any claim against
Abonmarche, and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold
Abonmarche harmless from any claims or liability for injury or
loss in the event that Abonmarche does not detect the
presence of contaminants through techniques commonly
applied in the provision of their services.

11. Underground Conditions.  Abonmarche shall have no
responsibility for the identification of existing or
unforeseen/differing underground conditions. The
Contractor shall have sole responsibility for determining the
nature of underground conditions and the means and
methods of dealing with those conditions. Abonmarche is
entitled to rely upon the information provided by
geotechnical consultants and shall have no responsibility for
the accuracy or correctness of the data contained in the
geotechnical reports.

12. Site Access and Security. With the exception of access
rights that land surveyors are afforded by law, the Client will
provide Abonmarche access to the Project site and the
Client will be responsible for obtaining any necessary


	Project Number: 21-1783
	Client name: The Village of Lawton Michigan 
	Date: 10/21/2021
	Client address: P.O. Box 367 Lawton, MI 49065
	Phone: 269.624.6407
	Cell: 
	Fax: 
	Email: imusl@lawtonmi.gove
	Abonmarche location: 95 W. Main Street Benton Harbor, Michigan
	Project Name: Lawton Village Hall Feasibility Study
	Location: 125 S. Main Street, Lawton, Michigan
	Scope of work 1: 1.Configure existing managers office into private office 2. Revise council chamber for flexibility and technology upgrades
	Scope of work 2: 3. Additional space considerations and feasibility study of building for development of schematic master plan 
	Project schedule: Pre-design 3 wks, Design and Discovery 5 wks, Final Report 2 wks
	Special provisions: Assistance with next steps and bidding. Construction Administration is separate proposal
	date: 9/22/2021
	FeeType: $14,925
	name: Lisa Imus - Village Manager
	Pr nted Name: Derk Walkotten
	Row1: 
	Title: Project Manager
	Row1_2: 
	Row2: 
	Row2_2: 
	Row3: 
	Abonmarche Consu 1: 95 W. Main Street
	Abonmarche Consu 2: Benton Harbor, MI 
	Abonmarche Consu 3: 49022
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	retainer: 0.00


